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ADDENDUM NO. 01 
 
 
PROJECT:  RFP for Manton Heights Early Childhood Education Center 
 
DATE:   October 30th, 2025 
 

 
TO ALL BIDDERS OF RECORD: 
 

This Addendum serves to modify, amend, and supplement a designated section of the REQUEST 
FOR PROPOSALS pertaining to the project titled "RFP for Manton Heights Early Childhood 
Education Center", dated October 3rd, 2025. It is hereby incorporated by reference and shall 
hold the same binding authority as if fully integrated into the original document. The Proposer 
is tasked with incorporating the information contained within this Addendum No. 1 into their 
proposal submission documents. Furthermore, it is incumbent upon them to inform all 
subcontractors and suppliers intended for various aspects of the project of any alterations or 
adjustments outlined within this Addendum. Failure to acknowledge the contents of this 
Addendum will preclude any claims for additional compensation. 

 
A. This Addendum forms a part of the Contract Documents. 
B. This Addendum includes:  

 
a. Proposal content and Format 
b. APPENDIX B: 1 Year Budget Proforma and Projections for Year 2 & 3 
c. Questions and Answers 
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a. Proposal Content and Format 

 
This is just a reminder to Offerors. There is no change in this section from the originally 
published RFP. 
 
Tab 5:  Required HUD and PHA Forms (Appendix C): 

All forms must be fully completed and submitted under this section as part of the 
response submittal.  

 
• HUD 5369-C CERTIFICATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS OF OFFERORS FOR NON-

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  
• COMPANY PROFILE FORM 
• NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT (Notarized) 
• CLIENT REFERENCES FORM 
• LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
• VENDOR DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 
• FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICE STATEMENT (Notarized) 
• CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS, LOAN AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

(Notarized) 
• CONTINGENT FEES STATEMENT (Notarized) 

 
 

b. APPENDIX B: 1 Year Budget Proforma and Projections for Year 2 & 3 
 

This is just a reminder to Offerors. There is no change in this section from the originally 
published RFP. 
 
Please note: 

• Fill out all forms provided in this section  
• Acknowledge the receipt of this Addendum 
• Fill out, sign and notarize the last page 
• Submit the cost proforma in a sealed envelope attached only to TAB 5 in the original 

copy of the submission. 
 
c. Questions and Answers 

 

1. Do you need to be a current Head Start Program to apply? 

No, current head start designation is not required.  

2. If not, is the expectation that the program becomes a Head Start Program? 

No, the expectation is that the selected provider achieves and maintains a 4-5 BrightStar 
quality rating.  
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3. After the four-year pilot, will rent be charged to the early childhood center by PHA? If so, 
will it be triple net and what would the rental amount be? 

Following the pilot, rental terms will be evaluated as part of the sustainability and 
partnership planning process. Specific terms, including rate structure, will be determined at 
that time in coordination with the provider.  

4. If the children in the two designated areas do not fill the license capacity, will the tuition 
scholarships offered by PHA pay for those empty spots? 

There are three designated classrooms. If enrollment does not reach full capacity within 
those areas, PHA will open enrollment to eligible families residing in nearby PHA 
developments to ensure full utilization. The center will serve 42 children.    

5. The tuition scholarship amounts, are they set by the provider/organization applying or do 
they mimic DHS CCAP rates? 

PHA will supplement the difference between the DHS subsidy and the providers tuition rate 
to ensure affordability for eligible families.  

6. After four years, if families do not qualify for DHS CCAP plus cannot afford the private pay 
tuition rate, will tuition scholarships still be offered through PHA? 

While ongoing scholarships beyond the pilot cannot be guaranteed, PHA is committed to 
developing a sustainability strategy and pursuing funding sources to continue supporting 
access for families beyond the initial four-year period.  

7. Does PHA have data on how many Manton Heights residents are employed or engaged in 
education or training programs?  These are two of the eligibility requirements for 
participation in the CCAP voucher program.  To develop a budget for this application, it 
would be useful to estimate the number of families participating in the voucher program. 

Currently there are 69 families in Manton that have working wages, and out of those 69 
families, 22 have children under 6. 

8. Can the Boston Celtics Shamrock Foundation and Amica Insurance Companies Foundation 
funding be used to provide support for families who do not have a CCAP voucher and be 
used to offset CCAP families’ co-payment requirements? 

PHA will supplement the difference between the DHS subsidy and the providers tuition rate 
to ensure affordability for eligible families.  

9. Note that BrightStars ratings are done center-by-center, not by organization. Potential 
bidders that operate multiple centers will have multiple BrightStars ratings. In addition, it 
takes one year for a new center to become BrightStars rated.  For its first year, the new 
center will operate with a one-star rating for purposes of the CCAP tiered reimbursement 
schedule. 

Not a question---Yes, we are aware of the above. The PHA team is familiar with the Brightstar 
requirements and process and has thoroughly discussed with DHS.   
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10. In the 1-Year Budget Pro-Forma, is the Project Total equal to the Total Revenue line on the 
next page? 

Yes, the project total expenses should match the total revenue line.   

11. Will the tuition subsidy amount be paid by PHA or by the Boston Celtics or Amica 
foundations directly?  How often will these payments be made? 

The providers’ contract will be with the Providence Housing Authority not with the 
foundations. Monthly invoicing will be required.  

12. Is PHA open to applications that propose other uses of the foundation funding besides 
tuition subsidy? 

No.   

13. I am a childcare provider In Massachusetts, but I am not licensed to provide services in 
RI.  Do I need to be licensed in RI to submit a proposal?  If yes, does PHA know how long it 
takes for providers to become licensed in RI? 

All proposers must be licensed in RI to provide childcare services in RI at the time of the 
submission of the proposal to PHA.   

According to information available on the website of the RI Department of Human Services 
the process to open a childcare program, regardless of type, can take anywhere from 3-6 
months. DHS requires up to fourteen days to review applications and documents submitted 
as part of this process. No program will be licensed without all requirements outlined in both 
regulations and statutes.  More information on this process can be found at 
https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-
resources/apply-be-child-care-
provider#:~:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20informatio
n%20on%20regulations. Questions about childcare licensing regulations should be directed 
to the RI Department of Child Care Services, Office of Childcare Licensing at (401) 462-
3009. 

14. Who is responsible for waste/trash removal? 

The PHA pays for and schedules waste/trash removal. 

15. Who is responsible for snow removal (plowing, shoveling walkways, de-icing)? 

The PHA is responsible for snow removal, including plowing, shoveling walkways, and de-
icing. 

16. Will there be laundry on site? 

• If yes, who supplies and maintains the machines? 

The PHA will supply a washer and dryer for use by the provider.  PHA will be responsible 
for maintaining the machines. 

https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-resources/apply-be-child-care-provider#:%7E:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20information%20on%20regulations
https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-resources/apply-be-child-care-provider#:%7E:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20information%20on%20regulations
https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-resources/apply-be-child-care-provider#:%7E:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20information%20on%20regulations
https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-resources/apply-be-child-care-provider#:%7E:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20information%20on%20regulations
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• If no, what are the expectations for linens? 

17. Who handles daily janitorial vs. deep cleaning, and who purchases consumables (paper 
goods, soap, trash liners)? 

The PHA handles daily janitorial and purchases and supplies paper towels, toilet paper, 
soap and trash liners.  The provider is responsible for any deep cleaning needed. 

18. Who covers landscaping, playground maintenance, and repairs? 

The PHA is responsible for landscaping, playground maintenance, and repairs. 

19. Who is responsible for pest control and alarm/security monitoring? 

The PHA is responsible for pest control and alarm/security monitoring 
 

20. Will the state agency expedite child-care assistance enrollment for eligible families? 

The PHA referred this question to the RI Department of Human Services.  The Department 
responded that there is no expedited process. 

21. Can we enroll families from outside Manton Heights/PHA properties? 

The provider may not enroll children from outside PHA developments. Enrollment is limited 
first to PHA families residing in Manton Heights.  If there are not sufficient children from 
Manton Heights, the provider may enroll children from families living in the PHA’s Hartford 
Park development.  If there are not sufficient children from these two PHA developments, 
the PHA will work with the provider to enroll children from other PHA developments and 
housing programs. 

22. Is a phased opening allowed (e.g., opening toddler rooms first)? 

The PHA does not envision a phased opening at this time but would consider 
recommendations from the provider awarded the contract to operate the program. 

23. Are any program supplies (toys, consumables, etc.) included in the PHA’s provision of 
space, furniture, equipment, and utilities? 

The PHA will provide furnished space that includes equipment and utilities at no cost to the 
provider.  PHA will confer with the provider awarded the contract to operate the program 
prior to the purchase of furniture and equipment. The PHA, with funding from the Shamrock 
Foundation and the Amica Companies Foundation, will provide a yearly allowance for 
learning tools and learning supplies. 

24. Will all three classrooms have a licensed capacity of 18 children, or will there be flexibility? 

Two of the classrooms have a maximum capacity of 18 children (anticipating two pre-
school classrooms); a third classroom has a maximum capacity of 12 children. 

25. For families eligible for CCAP, how will Celtics/Amica tuition support work? (Can it cover 
the gap between state reimbursement and our tuition rate?) 
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The funder will allow PHA to use funding to bridge the gap between the CCAP rate and 
the average Brightstars rate of the currently licensed programs the agency operates. 

26. Will philanthropic funds cover enrollment deposits or registration fees, or only monthly 
tuition? 

The PHA expects that the provider will not charge enrollment deposits or registration fees 
to PHA families whose children are enrolled in this program.  The PHA will consider provider 
requests for reasonable enrollment deposits and registration fees; provided, however, any 
such enrollment deposits and registration fees must be disclosed to and approved by the 
PHA prior to implementation. 

27. Are there minimum staffing qualifications beyond state licensing requirements (e.g., 
additional credentials or training hours)? 

No 

28. What data and outcomes will PHA require (e.g., attendance, assessments, family 
engagement)? 

PHA will require the provider to provide outcome data, including, but not limited to, 
attendance, family engagement, and assessment results.  PHA will engage an evaluator 
to work with the PHA and the provider to design additional outcomes to track as a part of 
an evaluation of this pilot program. 

29. What system and reporting cadence should we plan for? 

PHA will require vendor to use its outcome tracking system software Tracking at a Glance 
(TAAG) to provide quarterly reports. 

30. Who coordinates inspections and build-out sign-offs prior to opening, and what is the 
expected timeline? 

The PHA will coordinate inspections and construction completion sign-offs prior to 
opening.  The PHA expects construction work to be completed at the end of April 2026. 

31. Are there any restrictions on setting private tuition rates or fee policies? 

Yes.  The PHA does not believe that there will be a need for private tuition given the income 
level of PHA residents.  However, the PHA may consider reasonable requests for providers 
for private tuition rates and fee policies, but they must be disclosed to and pre-approved 
by the PHA prior to any implementation. 

32. Are there requirements for selecting food vendors?  

Yes.  Food vendors will be required to meet insurance requirements set forth in the RFP.  In 
addition, food vendors must comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations as well as applicable PHA policies, rules, and regulations. 

33. How long does it take to become licensed as a childcare provider in RI? 
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According to information available on the website of the RI Department of Human Services 
the process to open a childcare program, regardless of type, can take anywhere from 3-6 
months. DHS requires up to fourteen days to review applications and documents submitted 
as part of this process. No program will be licensed without all requirements outlined in both 
regulations and statutes. More information on this process can be found at 
https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-
resources/apply-be-child-care-
provider#:~:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20informatio
n%20on%20regulations. Questions about childcare licensing regulations should be directed 
to the RI Department of Child Care Services, Office of Childcare Licensing at (401) 462-
3009. 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

END OF ADDENDUM NO.1 

www.provhousing.org 
 

 

NOTICE TO ALL CONTRACTORS 
Failure to acknowledge receipt of this addendum on the proposal form may, at the sole discretion of 

the Owner, serve as justification for proposal rejection. 

https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-resources/apply-be-child-care-provider#:%7E:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20information%20on%20regulations
https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-resources/apply-be-child-care-provider#:%7E:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20information%20on%20regulations
https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-resources/apply-be-child-care-provider#:%7E:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20information%20on%20regulations
https://dhs.ri.gov/programs-and-services/child-care/child-care-providers-staff-resources/apply-be-child-care-provider#:%7E:text=Use%20this%20webpage%20to%20better,and%20updated%20information%20on%20regulations
http://www.provhousing.org/
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